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MATTHEW WELCH
3415 S. Sepulveda Boulevard
Suite 400
Los Angeles, CA 90034
and
INTERNET BLOGGER “TheZeitgeist”

and

INTERNET BLOGGER “AAW?”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Protefeed”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Douglas Fletcher”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “flye”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Fun Fact”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Warty”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “The Gobbler”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “John”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “/b/”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Mr. Weebles™
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and

INTERNET BLOGGER “planodoc”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Latter Day Taint”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “waffles”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “troy”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Mr Whipple”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Spencer Smith”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Shari Lewis”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “hmm”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Not Arthur Wolk”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Barely Suppressed Rage”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “Amakudari”
and

INTERNET BLOGGER “grylliade™
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Defendants.

2
3
COMPLAINT
4
5 Libel, Conspiracy to Incite Libel, Conspiracy to Cause Intentional Interference with
Contractual Relations, Conspiracy to Commit Libel by False Light, Civil Conspiracy,
6 Conspiracy to Intentionally Inflict Emotional Disturbance, Conspiracy to Engage in

Internet Bullying, Conspiracy to Commit Assault by Internet Bullying, Conspiracy to Incite
7 Infliction of Bodily and Emotional Harm, Conspiracy to Incite False Charges of Heinous

Crimes,
3 Extortion, Trustees Violation of Bylaws and Laws Relating to Non-Profit
Corporations, Stalking in Violation of 18 CSA Sec. 2709.1, Fraud deceit and Theft,
9 False Swearing, False Representation to Public Authorities Violations of Canons of
Legal Ethics, Deception and Deceit, Fraud and Deceit, False Light and Defamation,
10 Perjury and Subornation, Conspiracy to Interfere with Rights Guaranteed by the

Pennsylvania Constitution, Jury Tampering and Nullification
11

12 The Parties

13 1. Plaintiff, Arthur Alan Wolk, is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of
14 Pennsylvania, whose office 1s located at 1710-12 Locust Street, Philadelphia, PA, 10103,

15 2. Defendant Reason.com is an Internet bullying site organized under the laws of

16 the State of California, with its principal place of business in Los Angeles, California. It is
17 ||one of and is the attack dog for infer alia, The Reason Foundation, a euphemism for the
18 policies and goals of the Libertarian Party, a right wing fringe element that espouses what
19 ||amounts to an abandonment of the institutions of our Republic and its substitution with a
20 Government by putative journalists, self appointed intellectuals and right wing pundits but
21 whose real goal is to assassinate the character of individuals chosen for that purpose because
"555 2 they are a threat to the America without laws Reason Foundation wants. Reason Foundation
2 raises funds for their anti-consumer, anlti—Govemmem, anti-court, anti-judge and often anti-

Semitic, anarchistic views by proving to their donors how vicious they can be on their various
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media sites including Reason television, Reason.com and Reason magazine Reason.com
attempts to accomplish these ends by re-publishing with new commentary publications of
right wing tort reformers and others for the purpose undermining the civil justice system in
the United States, by forming an Internet tag team so if one of them is silenced for their
falsity, the other simply republishes with more false and defamatory comment to keep the
libel alive. The idea is to whip up a frenzy to prove their dedication to the causes of the
Libertarian party, much like the Nazi’s of the early 1930s, which will cull more donations
from their very rich donors and blind them to the dangers to American institutions of their
radicalism. It is believed and therefore averred that employees or agents of Reason.com are
the anonymous bloggers.

3. Defendant, the Reason Foundation, is organized and existing under the laws of
the State of California as a non-profit corporation with its principal place of business in Los
Angeles, and solicits tax deductible contributions from people to support its ideas of less
Government, but more regulation only if it’s helpful to its goals like tax breaks for the
hideously wealthy, less courts and regulation unless it is for right wing purposes. it has
created a multi-media collaboration of journalist wannabees, news anchor wannabees and
intellectual wannabees for the sole purpose of fostering whatever its current agenda of
whatever is the ultra right wing super rich agenda of the moment but attempts to accomplish
whatever its Trustees want by collaborating with others to assassinate character and reputation
of those who threaten their goals of no legal culpability for the wrongs of their benefactors,
the Trustees who are the captains of the financial house of cards that nearly destroyed
America.. The Reason foundation fails to do what real journalists are honor bound and taught
to do, verify the facts first. It is believed and therefore averred that Reason or its agents or

employees are the anonymous bloggers.
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4. The Trustees and Officers of the Reason Foundation and its Reason.com
magazine, at least two of whom are citizens and residents of Pennsylvania, are charged with
the legal responsibility to supervise and control the activities of the putative journalists they
employed by the Foundation they manage, an activity which these trustees and officers have
abdicated or have conspired, negligently or intentionally so as to encourage their putative
journalists to destroy human beings, destroy reputations, bully innocent people, hold innocent
people up to false light and libel, accuse them of heinous crimes without facts, investigation,
substantiation all with evil intent. In the context of this case, they have, after notice, failed to
intervene to prevent the activities of Reason.com, who stalk and bully the plaintiff via the
internet.

5. Defendant, Jacob Sullum, is an individual, a citizen and resident of Texas, who
is a putative journalist for the Reason defendants, a collaborator and conspirator of defendants
Olson, Frank and Overlawyered, and devotee to the principles of Internet Bullying no matter
what the cost to an innocent person’s life may be, acting intentionally and at all times and as
an agent, servant and employee and conspirator with the Reason defendants, its trustees and
officers, the goals and intentions of Overlawyered, the purposes of which were nothing less
than to continue the un-researched, un-fact checked, false and libelous articles of others as
part of its tag team of defamation.

6. Defendant, Nicholas Gillespie, is an individual, a putative journalist, an officer
and editor of Reason.com and its magazine who, along with Sullum, others and the
misguided, contributors to Reason, their trustees and the remaining defendants joined the
conspiracy to destroy the good name and reputation of Arthur Alan Wolk by inciting,
encouraging, re-publishing with false commentary and falsely alleging anew defamatory

articles for the sole purpose of advancing the perverted political and social goals of the
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rudderless ship known as Reason and then refusing to remove the articles from the internet
when he had irrefutable proof that what he was publishing was false. Gillespie violated the
basic tenants of journalism which are to check your facts, verify what you are about to say,
and do no evil to another person.

7. Defendant, Matthew Welch, 1s an individual, a citizen and resident of the State
of California, who claims to be someone of importance in the Reason organizations, but in
reality can best be described as “me t00™; that is, he too conspired with the Internet Bullies to
destroy the good name and reputation of Arthur Alan Wolk, and posted an article along with
his other “me too”, Gillespie, with the idea to punish Arthur Alan Wolk for complaining that
they, in conspiracy with the other defendants, acting at all times as agent and servant for them
within the scope of their agency, re-published with false commentary the same false articles
about Wolk.

8. Defendants, TheZeitgeist, AAW, Protefeed, Douglas Fletcher, flye, Fun Fact,
Warty, The Gobbler, John, /b/, Mr. Weebles, planodoc, Latter Day Taint, waffles, troy, Mr
Whipple, Spencer Smith, Shari Lewis, hmm, Not Arthur Wolk, Barely Suppressed Rage,
Amakudan, grylliade, and Boo the Puppy, are bloggers, some or all of whom are believed and
therefore averred to be Pennsylvania residents, who the defendants either incited to post on
their websites scandalous, heinous, false and defamatory statements about the plaintiff or are
the defendants themselves, their agents, servants, principals, employees or co-conspirators,
and whose identities Reason and the other defendants have conspired to protect and refuse to

provide to plaintiff after inquiry.
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The Background of This Lawsuit

9. The plaintiff is a 67 year old lawyer for forty-two years, the father of two sons,
one a lawyer, and a grandfather.

10.  For most of those forty-two years Wolk has been in the field of air crash
litigation for plaintiffs exclusively.

11.  As the age of the plaintiff suggests, while he can send and receive emails and
use a computer for the limited purposes, Wolk is far from a sophisticated computer user, nor
was he at the time material to the allegations of this lawsuit knowledgeable about search
engine choices like Google or Yahoo indeed whatever search engine his computer came with
is what Wolk used.

12 None of Wolk’s computers had at the time material to this lawsuit as its default
search engine, Google.

13. In April 2009, Wolk attended a CLE given by judges of the Court of Common
Pleas of Philadelphia.

14. During that CLE, the judges suggested that lawyers Google themselves since
jurors do.

15.  Wolk went home, Googled himself and found for the first time an article
written by the Internet Bullies, and its putative scholars and fellows that said:

Judge writes scathing opinion about attorney; opponent attorney mails opinion

to client; losing attorney sues other attorney for defamation. No dice, but even
this ludicrous suit does not result in sanctions. [Beck/Herrmann]

Beck and Herrmann miss, however, an especially interesting subplot. Wolk
settled the underlying case, Taylor v. Teledyne, No. CIV.A.1:00-CV-1741-]
(N.D. Ga.), on the condition that the order criticizing him be vacated. Did
Wolk's client suffer from a reduced settlement so that his attorney could avoid
having the order used against him in other litigation? (The discovery violation
complained about was apparently a repeat occurrence.) The district court
permitted a settlement that vacated the order, but its only reported inquiry into
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whether Wolk did not suffer from a conflict of interest and was adequately
protecting his client’s rights was Wolk’s representation to the court that the
client was alright with the size of the settlement. That begs the question
whether the client was fully aware of the conflict of interest; if._as seems to be
the case, the N.D. Ga. failed to do so, one really wishes courts would do more
to protect fiduciaries of plaintiffs’ attorneys before signing off on settlements.
338 F.Supp.2d 1323, 1327 (N.D. Ga. 2004), aff’d in unpublished summary per
curiam opinion (11th Cir., Jun. 17, 2005). (emphasis supplied).

A copy of the April 8, 2007 blog is attached and marked Exhibit “17.

16.  Wolk immediately provided the Internet Bullies with proof of the falsity of that
article and asked, in fact, demanded that it be removed from the internet, which the bullies
refused. Wolk did not even personally handle the discovery in the Taylor case, and thus the
order critical of Wolk’s conduct during discovery in the Taylor case was issued in error, but
more importantly Wolk ensured that his clients were protected by staying out of the
settlement negotiations, which were mediated by others. A true and correct copy of Wolk’s
April 9, 2009 e-mail to Defendant Frank is attached and marked as Exhibit “2”,

17. Moreover, the Taylor case was settled with no involvement from Wolk, and
the plaintiffs in the Taylor case had additional counsel other than Wolk, who independently
reviewed all aspects of the settlement making sure the plaintiffs in Taylor were well served,
received full value in the settlement and were completely satisfied with the result. Indeed, the
plaintiffs in Taylor received a settlement that far exceeded the value previously placed on the
case by an independent mediator.

18.  Most importantly, the Taylor case was settled before Wolk even requested the
Court vacate the mistaken discovery order, which the Court in Taylor eventually did.

19.  Aside from Wolk himself informing Overlawyered as to the falsity of its blog,
two independent lawyers directly involved in the Taylor case, Jason T. Schneider, Esquire and

John Kevin Griffin, Esquire, wrote separate letters to Overlawyered’s counsel, also
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confirming the blog was false. True and correct copies of the Griffin and Schneider letters are
attached hereto as Exhibits “3” and “4”, respectively.

20. In this regard, Attorney Griffin, who was counsel for one of the two plaintiffs
in Taylor, informed Overlawyered that the blog’s statements that the settlement was somehow
“compromised” in exchange for vacating the critical discovery order was “entirely false” as
there was “never consideration given or a quid pro quo offered for vacating the order.”
Indeed, as Griffin explained, the settlement was already reached before the Court vacated the
discovery order. (See Exhibit “3”).

21. Likewise, Attorney Schneider, who was also counsel in the Taylor case,
informed Overlawyered that the settlement had been reached before the Court vacated the
discovery order, and that the settlement amount actually exceeded independent valuations of
the case. As Mr. Schneider explained,

There is no question in my mind that the settlements reached
were completely separate from any request to vacate the
discovery order. The settlements reached were also well in
excess of any sums offered at the mediation. Therefore, to say

“it appears” that the clients” interests were somehow
compromised to get the discovery order vacated is wrong.

(See Exhibit <47,

22, Thus, Wolk provided the Defendants with all of the foregoing facts and
information, which conclusively proved that: (a) he did not sell out his clients; {b) he never
had a “conflict of interest”; (c) he fully disclosed all aspects of the case and settlement to his
clients and other plaintiffs’ counsel, all of whom independently reviewed and approved of the
settlement, which was well in excess of an independent mediator’s recommended settlement

value; and (d) he absolutely did not compromise the client’s interest in the settlement in
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exchange for vacating the court’s discovery order since the case was settled before the Court
even vacated the discovery order.

23, Although the Defendants never bothered to check the facts before posting the
blog, once Wolk provided Overlawyered with the actual, true facts, Overlawyered knew what
was contained in its April 8, 2007 blog was false.

24.  The Defendants nevertheless refused to remove the false blog, thereby
continuing to publish the blog with actual knowledge of its falsehoods. Worse, the defendants
made certain that their false blog was picked up with even more vitriolic commentary by the
Reason defendants and a myriad of other hate groups who are associated with them as an
internet bullying tag team.

25. Since the Defendants refused to remove the lies they posted, Wolk was forced
to file an action at law in this Court in August 2009, which Overlawyered removed to the U.S.
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania on diversity grounds.

26.  On August 2, 2010, the District Court granted the Defendants’ Rule 12{b)(6)
Motion to Dismiss, ruling that, despite Wolk having no reason to discover the defamatory
blog until April 2009, Pennsylvania’s “discovery rule” did not apply to toll the one-year
statute of limitations. A true and correct copy of the District Court’'s August 2, 2010
Memorandum is attached hereto as Exhibit “5”.

27.  Although the District Court’s decision was appealed to the Third Circuit, in the
meantime, Wolk has been forced out of court, without an adequate remedy at law, and
Overlawyered continue to allow the false April 8, 2007 blog to remain on their website even

though they know the allegations are categorically false.
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Wolk Becomes the Subject of Unrelenting
Character Assassinations

28.  After the District Court dismissed Wolk’s damages claim on statute of
limitations grounds, the Defendants immediately initiated a feeding frenzy of internet
blogging chatter further defaming Wolk, which included enlisting the participation of various

co-partnering blogging sites, like www.reason.com.

29.  Each of these websites appear to monitor and promote the other, forming a
type of co- partnering relationship, whereby blogs and comments published on one website
trigger the others to re-publish the same comments and make other comments, thereby
creating a swell of defamatory statements compounding the impact of the initial defamation.

30, In this regard, on August 6, 2010, a few days after the District Court’s
decision, Frank, the author of the initial April 8, 2007 Overlawyered blog, posted another

defamatory blog on www.Pointofl.aw.com, a partnership website affiliated with

Overlawyered. A true and correct copy of Frank’s August 6, 2010 bilog on PointofLaw is
attached hereto as Exhibit “6”.

31.  Frank’s PointofLaw blog addressed the decision in Wolk v. Olson as a victory
for “bloggers everywhere.” Frank, however, also summarized Wolk’s arguments in the
District Court, stating Wolk “argued that the statute shouldn’t start to run until the plaintiff
reads (or, de facto, claims to have read) the blog post.” See Id.

32. By characterizing Wolk’s allegations in the District Court as “de facto claims,”
the defendants were once again defaming Wolk by directly implying that Wolk lied in his
court filings as to the timing of when he read the first defamatory Overlawyered blog, but
what the defendants knew and Wolk didn’t when they filed their Motion to Dismiss was that

the article that perpetrated Wolk’s lawsuit was in fact published within a year of his lawsuit,
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so everything they said about Wolk missing the statute of limitations was entirely false. A
true and correct copy of Plaintift’s Rule 60 Motion is marked Exhibit “7”.

33, In an effort to further incite even more defamatory internet blogging the
defendants on his Point of Law blog referred to other co-partnership blog websites such as

www.reason.com and www.popehat.com, which contained additional false and defamatory

statements about Wolk. (See Exhibit “67).

34.  For example, the blog on www.reason.com to which

35.  Frank referred was posted by Defendant Sullum on August 6, 2010, and it was
entitled “Lawyer trying to protect his reputation as an Effective Advocate Misses Deadline for
His Libel Suit.” A true and correct copy of Sullum’s August 6, 2010 blog on Reason.com is
attached hereto as Exhibit “8”.

36.  The title of the August 6, 2010 Reason blog was clearly defamatory and held
plaintiff up to ridicule in that it intended to and did falsely imply that Wolk was an
incompetent lawyer because he missed the deadline for his own lawsuit, when by that time
and now they all knew Wolk’s lawsuit was timely filed.

37. Further, in his August 6, 2010 Reason blog, Suillum also implied that Wolk
was lying in the District Court about not Googling himself until April 2009, and further
implied that Wolk was guilty of filing a previous frivolous lawsuit by “bully[ing] an aviation
news website into a thoroughly abject capitulation and apology.” See /d.

38. Most significantly, Sullum’s August 6, 2010 Reason blog republished almost
the entirety of the utterly false and defamatory April 8, 2007 Overlawyered blog, and thus
again accused Wolk of breaching his ethical and fiduciary duties by selling out his client’s

interest in the Taylor case. See Id.
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39. Not to be outdone, on August 9, 2010, three days after the defamatory Point of
Law and Reason blogs, Overlawyered published its own blog concerning the District Court’s

decision in Wolk v. Olson, which again touted the decision as a victory for free speech.

Significantly, the blog referred readers back to Frank’s defamatory August 6, 2010 blog
posted on PointofLaw.com. A true and correct copy the defendants August 9, 2010 blog
posted on Overlawyered.com is attached as Exhibit “9”.

40. When Wolk was alerted of the defamatory August 6, 2010 Reason blog, he
immediately sent notice to the Reason Defendants, demanding that they remove the
defamatory blog since it re-published the initial April 8, 2007 Overlawyered blog as well as
completely new false and defamatory statements.

41.  The Reason Defendants, predictably, refused to remove their blog. Instead, to
further impugn Wolk, on September 16, 2010, Reason, through Sullum, published a second
blog entitled “Who You Calling Touchy?,” in which Reason published a portion of Wolk’s
demand letter for the sole purpose of inciting additional defamatory comments from Reason’s
bloggers. A true and correct copy Sullum’s September 16, 2010 blog post on Reason.com is
marked Exhibit “10”,

42, As aresult, a thread of comments from Reason’s anonymous bloggers ensued,
creating a feeding frenzy of outrageously defamatory statements, some of which came from
those affiliated with the Reason Defendants and all of whose identities the Reason Defendants
refuse to divulge.

43.  The Reason Defendants knew exactly what they were inciting in publishing
their blog “Who You Calling Touchy?,” and intended to incite the defamatory feeding frenzy

that ensued, knowing that it would be picked up by Google and other internet search engines.
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44.  As a result, Wolk has been shamelessly and falsely accused of the most
heinous crimes imaginable (See Ex. 10).

43, Wolk immediately demanded that the Reason Defendants remove the
defamatory blog and its comments, and produce the identifying information of the anonymous
bloggers who hideously libeled Wolk on their site.

46. While the Reason Defendants eventually removed the bloggers’ hideous
comments, they still refused to remove the blog articles themselves, and further ignored
Wolk’s requests for the information identifying the anonymous bloggers.

47.  Further, although the Reason Defendants “removed” the bloggers’ comments
from its sites, because search engines like Google “cache” or store historical information from
blogs and websites, to this day one can still find the “cached” comments through Google and
other search engines. See Google search of Wolk attached hereto as Exhibit “117,

48.  What the plaintiff could not have known and just leamed on November 22,
2010 was that Overlawyered and their counsel falsely misrepresented to the federal judge that
the article sued upon was published on April 7, 2007, when in fact it was republished with
different tags, links and SEOs in May, June and July 2008 making its republication well
within the year plaintiff filed his lawsuit. Thus, every article by Reason, every blog and every
criticism was utterly false. (See Exhibit “77.)

49.  What the defendants were obligated to do and did not once they leamed of the
falsity of their publications, and it was demanded of them that they remove their articles from
the internet, was to remove the libel, which they have not done for two years and thus are
liable to the plaintiff, this time for failing to remove the articles not for just publishing them
again and again with enhanced tags, links and SEOs as well as through their surrogates for

which they are also liable. A Reason contributor and First Amendment scholar
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EugeneVolokh himself recognized this obligation in a party on his own website, a copy of
which is attached and marked Exhibit “12”.

50.  The defendants have, since the decision of the federal court procured by their
fraud and failure to act according to the canons of ethics as lawyers, then engaged in a
feeding frenzy shouting “Mission Accomplished” anywhere they could, including enlisting
their co-partnering sites, like Popehat.com, Law.com, Reason.com and many others, to spread
the word. Each of these sites is a co-partnered site with Overlawyered, so that what is
published on one is a trigger for the other to publish again and make other comments,
regardless of its truth and without any independent verification of anything.

51.  What the defendants did not bother reporting to any of these sites was that the
same federal judge who dismissed Wolk’s case on statute of hmitations grounds told the
defendants through their lawyers Overlawyered had published a defamatory article, that they
would lose on First Amendment grounds, and that they should remove it from the internet.
They also never told the sites that they in fact had republished the article with the enhanced
tags, links and SEOs three times within the Statute of Limitations the court said was
applicable to the Wolk lawsuit and they had fraudulently failed to tell the judge and Wolk
about it. So Wolk had filed his lawsuit in time.

52.  Instead, the defendants published the following article stating:

Wolk v. Olson: Overlawyered in the news
by Walter Olson on August 9, 2010

While 1 was away in recent days, a news story about this site drew wide
coverage in the press. U.S. District Judge Mary McLaughlin last week
dismissed a defamation lawsuit filed by Philadelphia aviation lawyer
Arthur Alan Wolk against me, Overlawyered, and co-bloggers Ted
Irank and David Nieporent over a blog post that Ted published on this
site in 2007. Judge McLaughlin ruled (PDF) that the claim was time-
barred, notwithstanding Wolk’s argument that the operation of the
statute of limitations should have been stayed based on his claim that
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he was unaware of the post until 2009, when he says he first performed
a Google search on his own name.

The judge’s dismissal of the suit was covered in Law.com/The Legal
Intelligencer, the ABA Journal, Legal Ethics Forum, and many other
blogs and publications wetl known to our readers. All of us are grateful
to attorneys Michael N. Onufrak and Siobhan K. Cole of White and
Williams in Philadelphia, who represented us. Had the judge not ruled
in our favor on the threshold statute of limitations 1ssue, we are
confident that we would have prevailed based on the post’s protected
status under the First Amendment. Wolk has filed a notice of appeal in
the action.
For readers’ protection as well as our own, we are obliged to
discourage discussion in our comments section about these
developments. We regret the curtailment of free controversy.
More: Ted at Point of Law.

(See Exhibit “9™).

53.  That article was intended to trigger a pre-arranged and conspired re-publication
of the earlier defamatory article with commentary by other sites who, with the encouragement
of all the defendants knew it to be false, who knew it was not protected by the First
Amendment, who knew that it would engender another lawsuit, and who used it to further
incite, encourage and further disparage and defame the plaintiff because their colleagues, like
Reason, and Sullum, were as bereft of any intellect, talent and honesty as were Olson, Frank
and their encouraging, conspiring and supervising trustees of Manhattan, Enterprise, Cato and
Reason.

54.  The article by Frank, with its links to other sites that repeated the original
Frank article he knew or had reason to know would re-publish the original defamatory article
with commentary and was for the sole purpose of having others do what Frank had already
been told he should not do which is continue the publishing of the defamatory article. Frank,

Olson and the other Internet Bullies and defendants have yet to remove the false and

defamatory articles from the internet.
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1 55, What plaintiff did not know and what was revealed on November 22, 2010,
2 ||only after an exhaustive search of the history of Overlawyered by a Forensic 1T expert was
3 |[that Overlawyered, Frank and Olson manipulated their site and the internet, well within the
4 || one year that plaintiff had filed his lawsuit, so that subjects which have nothing to do with the
5 || plaintiff were linked to his name. These incluaed links to their false and defamatory articles
6 || when one used Google to search out plaintiff’s name as a lawyer to represent them in air crash
7 || litigation.

8 56. Dutifully, the Reason defendants, including Sullum and the rest of Internet
9 (| Bullies, on August 6, 2010 published an article entitled, “Lawyer trying to protect his
10 [[reputation as an Effective Advocate Misses Deadline for His Libel Suit”. (See Exhibit “8”).
11 57.  That article was intended to hold the plaintiff to false light by sarcastically
12 {|claiming that he must be a bad lawyer because he missed the deadline for his own lawsuit.
13 58. What Sullum and his cohorts failed to do, once again, was check the facts.
14 ||Instead, quoting wholesale from the lies that Overlawyered published, Sullum took it a step

15 || further again after doing nothing to investigate anything and said:

| 16 U.S. District Judge Mary McLaughlin did not question the plausibility
of this story, which suggests that a notoriously sensitive lawyer who
17 had sued over online criticism back in 2001 did not think of Googling
his own name until he learned about this esoteric technique in 2009.
' 18
59.  This remark without any independent inquiry accused Wolk of lying to the
19
Court when in truth and in fact Wolk, not quite as narcissistic as the defendants, never
20
Googled his name until attending the CLE because Google wasn’t his search engine and the
21
‘ other search engines didn’t publish the lies about him.
3 22
W 60. Sullum also mischaracterized the Statute of limitations issue by wholly
1
23
;ﬁ;i ignoring the Discovery Rule which Wolk asserted and which was the subject of four
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Pennsylvania Appellate cases in his favor, totally ignored by Judge McLaughlin even though
the Pennsylvania Supreme Court required that question in any case be decided solely by a
jury, thus holding Wolk up to false light as if he were inept. Worse, Sullum failed to point
out Wolk was represented by counsel, not pro se, thus the arguments made to the court were
counsel’s arguments not some figment of Wolk’s imagination and lastly Sullum ignored
what he knew or should have known being an internet manipulator, which was that
Overlawyered, Frank and Olson had republished the article with enhanced tags, links and
SEOs well within the one year Pennsylvania statute of limitations and that Wolk had filed on
time.

61.  Sullum wasn’t satisfied with his totally false and totally foundationless
criticism of Wolk. Sullum claimed further that Wolk had used a defamation suit to bully an
aviation news website into a thoroughly abject capitulation and apology for criticizing his
$480 million verdict he had won from Cessna.

62.  The false innuendo of such a remark was that Wolk somehow bullied a
multimillion dollar publishing entity and its controlling editors to settle when they were
represented by one of the biggest and toughest Philadelphia law firms was pure fiction. Had
Sullum done any research of his own, something he just can’t bring himself to do because he
isn’t an ethical journalist, he would have learned that Wolk had provided proof that his
lawsuit was valid and that proof led to an appropriate settlement with all the money paid
going to charity. Sullum was wrong on the facts again but he was instead satisfied to ignore
the very journalistic principles that any university would have taught him had he attended his

class on the required ethics of journalists.

Page 19 of 73
COMPLAINT




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

63. Sullum then went on to falsely claim that had Overlawyered not won because
Wolk “missed the deadline” “he (Wolk) would have lost the case, since the comments to
which he objected are a constitutionally protected combination of fact and opinion.”

64.  That statement is also false and had Sullum done a stitch of research or
contacted a real lawyer instead of one of the ultra right wing anarchists his Reason
Foundation likes, he would have learned that as a legal matter a combined fact and opinion,
which was never the Overlawyered’s libel anyway, is not Constitutionally protected at all
and Wolk missed no deadline, rather he learned about the libel too late in one court’s
opinion. The innuendo was that Wolk is somehow less of a lawyer because of the relative
obscurity of the Overlawyered blog that is visited by the fringe element of legal society was
too obscure even for Wolk to know about.

65.  Had Sullum done anything to research his trash he also would have learned
that Judge McLaughlin told Overlawyered’s counsel that he would not win on First
Amendment grounds as the article was clearly defamatory and that Overlawyered, Olson,
Frank and his lawyers White and Williams and Onufrak hid from the federal judge that the
article was republished three times within one year of Wolk’s suit thus making the statute of
limitations defense non-existent and the dismissal a fraud.

66.  Hoping against hope that the major damage was over and the Third Circuit
would decide to follow Pa. law as it is bound to do or refer the matter to the Pennsylvanma
Supreme Court for a reaffirmation of its opinion that the “Discovery Rule™ applies to “any
case” the plaintiff was surprised to see yet another article on Google this time posted by
Sullum and Reason at the behest of Olson, Frank and Overlawyered and in conspiracy with all
the foundations and their trustees that bring nothing to the American table but denigration,

financial manipulation, recession, and joblessness at taxpayer expense.
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67.  The article was written by Sullum, who like his internet bullying conspirators,
fact check nothing, investigate nothing, contact no one but join with the other putative
journalists to do evil to the plaintiff who was and 1s totally innocent and by so doing violate
every ethic of journalism.

68.  The second Article entitled “Who are you calling Touchy?” (See Exhibit “10™),
published an e-mail sent by Plaintiff to Sullum to warn him to cease and desist his defamatory
actions or face a lawsuit for his false rewriting and republishing of the Overlawyered article.
Reason actually has a tag, link or SEO for Overlawyered and Overlawyered for Reason.com
so they can readily reciprocate publishing their hatred on the internet.

69.  Plaintiff reached out to unethical Sullum and Gillespie to try to understand
why they would just pick up on such an obviously false article of Overlawyered and make it
even more vicious as if Sullum had done something to investigate further the facts,
circumstances and events leading up to article.

70. What Wolk did not know, and could not have known, was that there was never
an intention to act in an ethical or honorable way by Gillespie and Sullum but rather they were
trying to incite their bloggers to attack Wolk so they could get a blog going that would tear
Wolk to shreds, some of whom were affiliated with the Reason Defendants, and whose
prearranged libelous attacks were part of the way Reason.com enlarges its audience.

71.  Sullum instead published the article again and the libel again but added the
plaintiffs description of events and the substance of what the independent lawyers in the
Taylor case had written.

72.  The entire purpose of the blog entitled “Hit & Run” by Overlawyered is to

incite a frenzy of bloggers and then use that frenzy which they publish and republish to bring

Page 21 of 73
COMPLAINT




B

i

]

I

ba

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

fresh energy and more readership to their site, then they run and hide behind their super rich,
right wing benefactors. (See Exhibit “107).

73. The defendants knew exactly what they were inciting and intended that it
would let loose all the inmates from the asylum, knew that it would be picked up by Google
and other internet search providers, which Reason.com is not, and the libel would travel the
world in a nanosecond which it did. What plaintiff did not and could not have known is that
this entire escapade was orchestrated and manipulated by Frank, Olson, Overlawyered and the
remaining defendants in a conspiracy of no supervision, carelessness and recklessness for the
truth and deliberate encouragement for the financial benefit of all the remaining defendants,
and was accomplished either by themselves under pseudonyms or their conspirators at their
direction and instigation.

74.  The plaintiff Arthur Alan Wolk, a respected lawyer, a resident of Philadelphia
for 67 years, a father of two, (one a lawyer himself), and a grandfather, active socially in
Philadelphia charities is none of the things he has been accused of by defendants, has been
falsely accused of heinous crimes at the instigation, behest and connivance of all these
defendants who engage in this for sport, for publicity for their sick causes, to destroy a
successful lawyer as one more defense notch in their defense of air crash cases and to enhance
the financial condition of the defendants.

75. Wolk immediately warned Sullum and Gillespie that they would be sued and
demanded the identities of the anonymous bloggers who hideously libeled Wolk on their site,
a request which was refused.

76.  The bloggers postings were removed from that article and Wolk once again
reached out in an effort to get Reason’s counsel to reason with his clients since the damage

had been serious and was likely to become even worse to no avail. Instead defense counsel

Page 22 of 73
COMPLAINT




.

s

FIs

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

wanted the plaintiff to write him a legal brief why his clients should comply with plaintiff’s
reasonable requests which this lawsuit is the first step at compliance.

77.  Hopeful once again that the defendants would attempt to act in an honest,
ethical and conciliatory fashion after again falsely accusing the plaintiff of selling out his
clients, Wolk yet again reached out to the defendants though their lawyer, but Gillespie and
Welch, piqued at having to be honorable, honest and fair minded had to put their two cents in
by publishing yet another incendiary and totally false article, a true and correct copy of which
is attached and marked Exhibit “13”.

78. That article, entitled “A Note to Our Commentators”, instead of admonishing
them for being the filthy animals who violated the criminal savings provisions of the

Communications Decency Act and numerous State Criminal Codes, re-incited a riot by

stating:
“A short while back we published two blog posts about attorney
Arthur Alan Wolk. We did so because exercising and defending free
speech is fundamentally what Reason is about. That especially includes the
freedom to criticize lawyers, particularly when their behavior warrants it.”
(See Exhibit “13™).

79.  The innuendo of that article was that the selling out of Wolk’s client
that was previously written about was warranted and the charge that he bullied an
aviation site into settling and apologizing to him was also true two charges that are and
were entirely false.

80. Worse the entire purpose of that article which was neither necessary
nor accurate was to incite their bloggers further, an invitation to take off and kill

Wolk, this time either verbally or actually.
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81.  And kill Wolk they did by repeating on another blog on another article
on Reason.com about the First Amendment where they pilloried Wolk just as they
knew the article would do with a repeat, but even more vile accusations of heinous
crimes, which of course made it to Google’s first page. This publication occurred so it
would appear on Google over a weekend when Reason’s counsel was unavailable for
Wolk to reach and indeed it wasn’t until the following Tuesday that the sites were
cleared and Google cached but by that time the charges of a crime more horrible than
any was viewed by tens of millions.

82.  These defendants all knew what they were inciting and what they were
risking for Wolk that would be entirely unrelated to anything he could possibly be
guilty of.

83.  These defendants were warned that such statements and unfounded
charges would make it impossible for Wolk to live in his community or anywhere else
not to mention the impact on his children.

84.  Undaunted the defendants all acting in a conspiracy designed to separate
plaintiff from his well deserved and well earned reputation for honesty and fair dealing and
his success as a lawyer were not satisfied, they needed to erase him as a human being.

85.  That article by Gillespie and Welch restates the falsity, confirms that Wolk’s
“behavior” should be criticized, which is presumably the alleged selling out of Wolk’s clients
which Sullum and Overlawyered falsely accused him of, and worse.

86. The articles in No Reason, Pope Hat, Law.com, and others were all with the
connivance, concerted action, intention to defame, do evil, aggravate the damage to the
plaintiff that is the touchstone of the espoused illegal purposes of Manhattan, Enterprise,

Cato, the Trustees, Reason Olson, Frank and Overlawyered.
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87. But Frank and his pet character assassination rag, Overlawyered, was not to be
silent because Olson and Frank didn’t want to outdone, so After the decision of Judge
McLaughlin which while silent on the issue of First Amendment never addressed on the
record their legal obligation to remove the false posting which is one of the subjects of this
lawsuit, directed their readers to a “must-read analysis by Jacob Sullum at Reason; further
commentary at Popehat; DBKp; Instapundit...” In that article Frank who can’t seem get over
himself and his utter lack of scholarly peer reviewed anything, claims that Wolk lied to the
federal court when he said: “but the plaintiff argued that the statute shouldn’t start to run until
the plaintiff reads (or, de facto, claims to have read) the blog post.”

88.  This false statement once again holds Wolk up to false light and claims he lied
to the judge without even a hint that such is true, which it isn’t. Worse, it was written when
these defendants were aware that Wolk had filed his lawsuit on time, and they had lied to a
federal judge, to Wolk and to his counsel.

89. Frank made such an statement of fact, his words, without making any effort to
see if that were true, never asking for metadata, computer data, search engine information or
anything else that would have confirmed that Wolk had never Googled his name before the
CLE suggested he do so.

90.  The innuendo was that Wolk lied to the Court, that his lawyer lied to the Court,
that Wolk was inept for not knowing about the nut ball group that is Overlawyered.com. all of
which is just further evidence of Frank’s unwarranted sense of self importance, without telling
anyone that the article wasn’t on Google until within the year Wolk filed his lawsuit.

91.  Each time the defendants dirtied the plaintiff’s name Wolk made the effort to
ask and then demand from the Foundations and their Trustees that the libel be removed and

each time he got stonewalled long enough to get counsel involved to encourage the repeat of
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1 |[the libel as some sort of protected speech when they knew that at least one judge had already
2 ||said it wasn’t.
3 92.  The plaintiff in an effort to mitigate the damage done non-stop by the
4 || defendants had to hire a Forensic IT consultant to help clear the internet of the false and
5 || damaging postings by the defendants.
6 93. One such effort was to post a biography on Wikipedia, an internet
7 ||encyclopedia, which highlighted Wolk’s substantial accomplishments to advance aviation
8 |{safety ironically a career that allows the defendants to fly around the world safely in their
9 || private jets at taxpayer expense, another deduction paid for by the Americans whose wealth
10 |jthey stole, which is untouched by defendants’ frenzied criticism of Government and its
11 |l institutions.
12 94, Olson, and Frank who worked for Manhattan to further its interests in tort
13 || reform, with the connivance, assistance and conspiracy of Frank and Overlawyered stalked
14 || the plaintiff and when the complementary posting appeared they posted every deleterious and
15 || false thing they could dredge up to do even further damage. Conspicuous by its absence
16 | however was any mention that Olson, Frank, Overlawyered, White and Williams and Onufrak
17 || had lied to the Court to obtain their dismissal by fraud.
18 95.  Plaintiff investigated and learned that the stalking of plaintiff by Olson and
19 || Frank and Overlawyered has continued non-stop since 2001 with false and ugly articles
20 || posted by them periodically saying falsely that plaintiff bullied Avweb into settling a libel
21 [|case the monies from which went to charity and belittling every accomplishment Wolk has
i 22 || made since then.
23 96.  Plaintiff, even after all of this hatred was spewed upon him by defendant

internet stalkers, hired, paid for, encouraged and published by the other defendants and

| Page 26 of 73
COMPLAINT




;

ha

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

encouraged collaborated in permitted and benefitted from by their trustees, tried to warn the
trustees of the sham charities that they would be sued if they did not do their legal duties to
cause the putative non-profit organizations to stop this ultra vires, unlawful even criminal
activity, a copy of which letter is marked Exhibit “14”.

97. Even after warning them and appealing to them to stop this damage they
arrogantly flaunted their ill-perceived and more ill-begotten power to blow off the plaintiff’s
demands and encourage the defendants to do more and worse.

98.  What plaintiff did not know and could not have known was that while the
Underlawyered defendants’ lawyers, White and Williams and Onufrak were telling the
Federal Court that the defendants were innocent and had only published the article on April 7,
2007, they knew that the defamatory articles had in fact been republished with enhanced tags,
links and SEOs within a year of the plaintiff’s lawsuit which made even their twisted and
legally unfounded Statute of Limitations argument moot. Instead of informing the court,
which all the lawyer defendants, Onufrak, Olson and Frank were ethically obligated to do,
they got their dismissal under fraudulent and false pretenses,

99. White and Williams and the Overlawyered, knowing that they fraudulently
induced the Court to dismiss on grounds that were entirely false, then went on a “Mission
Accomplished” campaign in The Legal Intelligencer in Philadelphia, The Philadelphia
Business Journal, and on a White and Williams blog touting their victory as well founded in
law and fact and ridiculing plaintiff as a lawyer when they knew they had gotten their
dismissal by fraud and had lied to the Court.

100.  The articles in The Legal Intelligencer, The Philadelphia Business Journal and
the White and Williams blog are attached and marked Exhibit “15” and nowhere mention that

the Overlawyered articles for which plaintiff had filed suit had been republished with

Page 27 of 73
COMPLAINT




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

enhanced tags, links and SEOs which these lawyers knew from legal precedent made such
publication a new publication with no protections whatsoever from the “republication rule.”

101.  The trustees and their organizations, the sham tax exempt organizations, have
no doubt investments in the companies that Wolk sues including, Textron Inc., The Boeing
Company, Piper Aircraft Company, United Technologies, Honeywell and the many others for
whose interests they illegally lobby, illegally make false accusations and use libel of the
plaintiff’s lawyer as the defense du jour of aircraft crash cases in their further efforts to
undermine the civil justice system, exactly what the judges of this court warned in the CLE
that began Wolk’s inquiry.

The Damages Suffered

102.  When Plaintiff’s at law suit was dismissed on statute of limitation grounds,
falsely obtained as it was and is timely filed, plaintiff filed an Equity action in the Court of
Common Pleas of Philadelphia, as he was without a remedy at law.

103.  Defendant Sproul and her firm acting for Reason.com and their affiliated
defendants falsely removed the case to the federal court, in spite of the utter lack of diversity
jurisdiction, and then perjured a defendant to claim he was a resident of Florida and not
Pennsylvania where he lives.

104.  After an expensive investigation, it turned out that Sproul and her firm perjured
that defendant, which in fact he was a full time resident of Pennsylvania, that he voted in
Florida through his Pennsylvania address, and that as Judge McLaughlin said, this is just a tax

dodge.
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105. By fraudulently removing to federal court, Sproul and her firm deliberately
delayed plaintiff’s opportunity for injunctive relief, which also kept the lying blogs in place
for eight months.

106. In addition, Sprou! cost plaintiff more than $100,000 to hire investigators to
prove what she knew was true at all times, her client was nothing more than a tax cheat,
owning six businesses in Pennsylvania, living in a Main Line mansion, and not paying his fair
share of Pennsylvania taxes.

107.  This lawsuit is brought for the later false and defamatory publication, for
which suit was timely brought and with respect to which Overlawyered procured a dismissal
since the dismissal was based on the original publication of April 7, 2006, not the actual
publication of May 13, 2008, June 2008 and July 2008, thus there has been no dismissal o.f the
claim at Bar.

108.  This lawsuit is brought as a substitute for and not in addition to an Equity
lawsuit filed once the Federal Court dismissed under false pretenses the original at law
complaint.

109.  This lawsuit is not brought as a repetitive claim for anything that was actually
decided by any court, nor which was subject of a final disposition before its filing.

110.  The damages suffered by the plaintiff have been horrific.

111, The plaintiff has been accused of selling out his clients.

112, The “selling out his clients” false accusation has appeared on the internet, on
Google, and until the defendants deliberately fanned the flames was not on Yahoo or any
other search engine to plaintiff’s knowledge.

113, Solely as a result of the concerted action by these defendants the search

engines are alive with this false accusation.
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114.  The defendants have purposefully repeated the libel and enhanced the tags,
links and SEOs so that search engine software would pick up the libel and spread it
everywhere again and again but to even more diverse audiences than as originally published.

115.  The appearance of impropriety for a lawyer who is innocent is unspeakable
and fans the flames of hatred by the public, including jurors, for lawyers generally but
directed hatred primarily against the plaintiff by name.

116. Clients who would use Google to find more about a lawyer they might hire,
would never hire a lawyer who is alleged to have sold out a client and is claimed to be guilty
of heinous crimes.

117.  Jurors who see that a lawyer is accused of selling out his client have no belief
in what the lawyers says in trial.

118.  Judges who would Google a lawyer charged even falsely with selling out a
client would never believe that lawyer about anything, nor accept his pro hac vice which is
vital to the plaintiff’s nationwide practice.

119.  The emotional toll and physical toll has been unspeakable.

120.  Plaintiff does not sleep, his back pamn from his own airplane crash of some
years ago has become on some days disabling, but painful every day, he takes medication for
pain and to reduce the highs and lows that this emotional roller coaster has put him on, the
plaintift’s post traumatic stress disorder is back with a vengeance and resurgent nightmares
and daymares of his crash occur frequently and plaintiff’s new business is impacted as well as
business relations generally.

121, Plaintiff does not show his face at Bar functions, or social engagements where

members of the Bar may be present in numbers.
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122, Plaintiff has had to explain to his children that he is innocent and will defend
himself and he has incurred hundreds of thousands of dollars in legal fees thus far.

123.  Plaintiff’s retirement is threatened as his ability to sell his practice to his
associates since the defendants have reduced or eliminated its value.

124, Plaintiff has to work harder, incur more expense, and litigate more cases to
either trial or very close because defense lawyers are emboldened for what they mistakenly
see is a weakened lawyer.

125.  Plaintiff must file repeated lawsuits at great personal expense to seek redress
from the rapidly deteriorating nature of the internet libel inflamed, instigated and conspired in
by all defendants.

126.  Plaintiff is unable to clear his name because defendants continue to stalk him
on the internet and prevent it being cleansed of their defamation and false light.

127.  The defendants have stolen the plaintiff’s good reputation personally,
impinged upon his professional reputation, attempted to inflict emotional disturbance,
interfered with client, juror and judge relations.

128. In a recent incident a seller of an aircraft refused to do business with Wolk
because of what he read by defendants on the internet.

129, The defendants, in spite of warnings given, drafted their briefs and filings with
the Court for publis